
Baker County Library District 
Library Board 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
Nov 9, 2020 

 

Page 1 of 6 
 

Call To Order 
 

The meeting took place online, utilizing GoToMeeting web conference 
platform. This meeting represents the Baker County Library District located at 
2400 Resort Street, Baker City, Oregon. 
  
Attendees included Directors Kyra Rohner, Gary Dielman, and Frances 
Vaughan; along with Business Manager, Christine Hawes and Library Director, 
Perry Stokes who hosted the meeting from his office computer.  At 6:05pm, 
with three present, there was a quorum. 
 
After greetings and confirmation of attendance, President of the Board, Kyra 
Rohner, called the meeting to order at 6:05pm.  
 
Beth Bigelow logged in at 6:15pm, she had trouble getting logged in and 
reported that Betty Palmer was also having trouble logging in. 
 
Stokes displayed the board packet for all to see in GoToMeeting, starting with 
the agenda. 
 

Consent Agenda  
 

Rohner asked for any additions or deletions to the agenda.  Stokes had one 
item to add to the agenda under New Business: Review of State Library 
Statistics Report.   She then asked if there were any edits for the minutes.  
There were no changes to the minutes.  Rohner asked for a motion to approve 
the agenda and the minutes from the last meeting.  Dielman made a motion 
to approve the consent agenda; Frances seconded; motion passed 
unanimous (3 yeas, motion passed unanimous by those present).  
  

Conflicts or 
Potential Conflicts 
of Interest 

Rohner asked for any conflicts of interest for board members.  There were 
none stated. 
 
 

Open Forum for 
general public 

Rohner asked Stokes whether he had received anything from the public.  
Stokes had no communications directed to the board.  He shared that he 
recently ran into a former employee, who stopped him to express how much 
they appreciate all of the pandemic safety protocols the District has in place. 
They feel safe when visiting the library.  Stokes said the supportive feedback 
was much appreciated and gratifying.  
 

OLD BUSINESS: 
Report on 
Pandemic Response 
Activities 

Rohner moved to Old Business and handed it over to Stokes.   
 
Stokes reported on the pandemic situation. Today, Baker was added to a 2-
week pause list that includes several counties in Oregon where things are not 
trending well.  He displayed a graph of rolling 7 �����Ç�•�[ average of new cases; 
Baker County is really jumping up, Union and Grant Counties are also climbing.    
The state operational guidelines for counties included in the � p̂ause�_ do not 



Baker County Library District 
Library Board 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
Nov 9, 2020 

 

Page 2 of 6 
 

necessitate changes to our service plan.  Library protocols are well within the 
criteria.  If things get substantially worse, a step back in service level could 
involve moving to a staggered staff schedule with groups A and B coming in, 
reverting to Drive-up/Curbside service only, and shortening hours. 
 
Meanwhile Stokes is focusing on getting building air systems improved. BCLD 
Facilities Specialist Adamson has begun installing powerful wall-mount air 
purifier units. There is one in the meeting room, and one in the staff 
workroom. Adamson found that some restroom ventilation systems are 
already in place, but appear to have been deactivated at some point. Motors 
had failed and not been replaced.  Restoration will involve electrical work.  He 
has been struggling to find suitable and available motors which has delayed 
getting them installed.  He is confident the systems can be brought back 
online.   
 
Adamson is looking into upgrading the HVAC control system to resolve issues 
with regulating the volume of fresh air coming in.  Stokes is confident this and 
many other measures will qualify for pandemic CRF grants. SDAO has been 
urging all districts to aggressively utilize the $250,000 of CRF grant funds 
allocated to each agency with guidance that the eligibility criteria are very 
broad.  He has been purchasing things to improve signage, facilitate curbside 
service, telework, sanitation, and public safety.   
 
Stokes has purchased electrostatic sprayers for staff to use that will make 
sanitation efficient.  Touchless book drops will help with public safety, 
additional book trucks with curbside service.  He went on to describe other 
equipment in the plan.  This current reimbursement round opens today, 
closing the 20th.  He will start compiling that information this week. Another 
two rounds were recently added to the reimbursement schedule, extending to 
the end of December. 
 
Beth Bigelow logged in at 6:15pm at this point in the meeting. 
 
Stokes reviewed pandemic statistics and trends. 
 
There were no questions. 
 

Continuation of 
Services Plan 

Stokes moved on to the Continuation of Services Plan stating that there are no 
changes to propose since the previous meeting.  He had no feedback from the 
Health Department on the plan and assumes they have been preoccupied with 
other priorities such as coordinating with the schools. 
 
 



Baker County Library District 
Library Board 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
Nov 9, 2020 

 

Page 3 of 6 
 

NEW BUSINESS: 
Review Library 
Statistics Report 

Stokes has submitted the annual public library statistics report to the State 
Library.  He displayed his spreadsheets of historical data with graphs to show 
trends.  Of course, usage and services statistics for this past year are 
significantly skewed due to the pandemic.  On a positive note, library funding 
continues to be strong and has been boosted recently with a couple of large 
tax revenue infusions from new development projects in the county.   
 
Looking at data prior to the pandemic impact, total checkouts continue to 
trending downward, mostly due to fewer DVD loans as people shift to 
streaming services for their entertainment.  Digital loans of eBooks and eAudio 
were steadily increasing prior to the pandemic and have had a surge of use.  
On Interlibrary loans, BCLD loaned out more than borrowed which meets 
Stokes�[ goal.  The number of cardholders has decreased.  Volunteer hours has 
gone down because volunteer participation was suspended in late March. To 
date, only employees are allowed to in the staff workroom for extended 
periods.  ���Z�]�o���Œ���v�[�•��and young adult checkouts are stable.  A method to track 
the number of wireless sessions was recently implemented, but was not 
available for this report.   
 
Stokes summarized by saying the data demonstrates that despite the 
pandemic, there is still strong demand for library materials and services.  
Public computer usage has been falling for several years and digital content is 
increasing. The trend is expected to continue as people use their personal 
portable computer devices such as smart phones. Libraries will need to 
increase investment into providing digital conveniences.    
 

    
REPORTS: 
Director Report 

�^�š�}�l���•���P���À�����š�Z�������]�Œ�����š�}�Œ�[�•���Œ���‰�}�Œ�š�����}�]�v�P�������•�Z�}�Œ�š���Œ���À�]���Á���}�(���š�Z�����Z�]�P�Z�o�]�P�Z�š�•�W 
 
Administration/ Budget �t Stokes said that he will aim to present a 
supplemental budget in December rather than at this meeting. Due to various 
factors, the update will be elaborate and likely require publication. Set up of 
the Materials Recovery Service trial is in progress. 
 
Facilities & Vehicles: 

�x Stokes was able to purchase a used SUV for district use through the 
latest OTEC surplus vehicle auction. The district now has a 2002 GMC 
Yukon Denali bought for around $7,900.  Adamson intends to sell the 
old 1986 library pickup and wants to find a trailer for the Denali to 
haul materials to the dump.   

�x The reflective window tinting is installed on the south eastern side. It 
has the mirror reflection on the outside for privacy and UV/solar 
protection and does look a little darker during the day.   
 



Baker County Library District 
Library Board 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
Nov 9, 2020 

 

Page 4 of 6 
 

�x Bookmobile �t Adamson �Á���•�v�[�š�������o�����š�}���(�]�v���������µ�•�������P���v���Œ���š�}�Œ, so a new 
one will be purchased. Stokes is confident it will qualify for CRF grant 
reimbursement, as well, since it is a critical air ventilation element. 

�x The water heater at the main branch was leaking and failing, so will be 
replaced that with a tankless unit. 

�x �d�Z�����Œ�����}�v���(���v���]�v�•�š���o�o�������]�v���š�Z�������Z�]�o���Œ���v�[�•�����Œ�������]�•��operational.  It has 
dropped radon levels by 2 points and testing continues. Levels will 
need to drop a more to meet regulations. Additional fans and vents 
may be necessary. 

 
Personnel: Our lead Haines staff has resigned to finish up a school program.  
Diana intends to fill the hours with existing staff for now. 
 
Programs & Services:  

�x Youth services staff reported that the Summer Reading Program had 
good attendance despite being a completely online program.   

�x Baker branch traffic remains steady at about 550 each week. 
�x In lieu of the Free Comic Book Day which was canceled in May, BCLD 

participated in an outdoor Trick or Treat event at the Sunridge to hand 
out comic books and candy.  It was reportedly attended by about 
1,500 people. 

�x We are giving a box of donated books to the jail. 
 
Safety & Security �tstaff have had a few issues with non-compliance wearing 
face masks, and one potential exposure instance at a branch.  The district does 
not require health survey or temperature checks for people visiting the library.  
But if there are observable symptoms consistent with COVID-19, the visitor will 
be asked to leave the building and use our curbside or window services.  
Stokes will be crafting a handout for staff to provide patrons in such instances.  
He also bought a few N95 masks for staff to use in such high risk situations. 
 
Technology �t  

�x The email system went offline for a couple days.  Jim has worked on 
troubleshooting the issues with the host and learned that our email 
platform is antiquated.  It has met our needs, but needs to be 
modernized primarily for security and compatibility with newer 
technology protocols.  Migration to a new platform will involve a 
significant expense, and annual hosting fee is expected to be greater. 

�x Stokes has also directed Jim to find a wireless printing system for the 
public to use.  That will be another annual subscription cost. 

 
 



Baker County Library District 
Library Board 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
Nov 9, 2020 

 

Page 5 of 6 
 

Finance Report Stokes displayed the financial report in GoToMeeting and scrolled through for 
the board to follow along.  The reports were included in the board packets.  
Hawes provided a narrative: 
 
The General Fund received tax turnovers of $84,256.78 on November 2.  
Historically there are 2 or 3 turnovers in November.  No other noteworthy 
revenues.  Personnel Services is at 39% spent and is on target with budget.   In 
Materials & Services, noteworthy checks written at the end of October 
included OTEC $7,863.92 to purchase the GMC Denali, Comprise Technology 
$3,169.00 to renew the SAM subscription, and The Windshield Doctor 
$4,000.00 to install window shading on the library building east facing 
windows.  Noteworthy checks written today include Sage System $13,396 for 
annual membership, Clary Business Machines $11,000 for 8 wall mount air 
sterilizers, Oregon Government Ethics Commission $548.87 for the annual fee, 
and Computype $618.11 for special library book spine labels. The City of 
Sumpter has recently submitted prior year utilities for the Sumpter library; we 
agreed to pay 50% of the electricity and heating costs for the museum building 
in lieu of rent.  These payments are for the last 2 fiscal years: FY2018-2019 
$1,604.24 for electricity and heating, FY2019-2020 $521.96 for electricity 
(heating expense is supposed to be coming).  The General funds portion of the 
Visa statement is $11,829.81 with large purchases including Baker Cleaning 
Solutions $4,114.09 for handheld sprayers for sanitizing, Workstyle $1,179.00 
for the online platform used for the staff training in October. 
 
The Other Funds wrote checks to Visa $82.23 for book shipping, and 2 checks 
for commissions totaling $51.38. 
 
The Sage Fund has begun receiving membership revenues, two recent 
deposits totaled $90,088.  This fund wrote checks for courier services totaling 
$1,730.20 and to Visa of 527.33.  Visa expenses included GoDaddy 
subscriptions for domain and web hosting totaling $398.08 and courier labels 
$113.50. 
 
Hawes referenced the checking account printout of Bills Paid in November, 
one for each fund has been included with reports for the board to review.  In 
the General Fund, the 90000 series are the payments scheduled online; In the 
Sage Fund, the 8000 series are the payments scheduled online.  She asked the 
board to review those items in particular and asked if there were any 
questions. 
 
The completed draft of the Financial Statements has been submitted to the 
auditing firm last week.  There has been no response at this point. 
 
There were no further questions. 



Baker County Library District 
Library Board 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
Nov 9, 2020 

 

Page 6 of 6 
 

 
Rohner asked if there were any further questions; there were none.  She asked 
if there was anything others wanted to add to the agenda for next month.  
Dielman wants to report on the historic photo project next month.  He has 
been working on a project that involves photos Stokes rescued from a local 
yard sale by the Wong family, former owners of the Royal Café Restaurant.  
 
Rohner thanked everyone for switching to online for tonight given the increase 
in pandemic numbers in Baker County.  She wants to continue with an online 
meeting again next month, from there we will see if things improve. 
 

Next Meeting Date 
 

�d�Z�����v���Æ�š���Œ���P�µ�o���Œ�����}���Œ�����}�(�����]�Œ�����š�}�Œ�[�•���u�����š�]�v�P���Á�]�o�o�����������������u�����Œ���í�ð�U���î�ì�î�ì�X 
 

Adjourn 
 

The meeting was adjourned at 6:55 pm.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Perry Stokes, 
Secretary to the Board 
 
PS/ch 

 
 






